
AGENDA 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL CARE ADVISORY BOARD (EMCAB)  

REGULAR MEETING 

THURSDAY – May 10th, 2018 

4:00 P.M. 

 

Location: Kern County Public Health Services Department 

San Joaquin Room – 1st Floor 

1800 Mount Vernon Avenue - Bakersfield, California 93306 
(661) 321-3000 

 
I. Call to Order 

 

II. Flag Salute  

 

III. Roll Call  
 

IV. Consent Agenda (CA): Consideration of the consent agenda.   

All items listed with a “CA” are considered by Division staff to be routine and non-controversial. 
Consent items may be considered first and approved in one motion if no member of the Board or 
audience wishes to comment or discuss an item.  If comment or discussion is desired, the item will 
be removed from consent and heard in its listed sequence with an opportunity for any member of 
the public to address the Board concerning the item before action is taken.   

 

V. (CA) Approval of Minutes:  EMCAB Meeting February 8th, 2018– approve 
      
VI. Subcommittee Reports: None 

 
VII. Public Comments: 

 
This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on any matter not 
on this Agenda and over which the Board has jurisdiction.  Members of the public will also have 
the opportunity to comment as agenda items are discussed. 
 

VIII. Public Requests: None 

 
IX. Unfinished Business:  None 

 

X. New Business: 

 
A. Resuscitation Academy –  Receive and file 

B. Napa Fires – Receive and file  

C. Annual ALS Provider Performance Reports – Receive and file 

D. Annual EMS System Activity Report – Receive and file 



XI. Director’s Report: Hear presentation  
 

XII. Miscellaneous Documents for Information:  

 
A. (CA) EMS Fund Annual Report – receive and file 
 

XIII. Board Member Announcements or Reports:   
 

On their own initiative, Board members may make a brief announcement or a brief report on their 
own activities.  They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff, or take action to 
have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda.  (Government Code Section 54954.2 [a.]) 

 
XIV. Announcements: 

 
A. Next regularly scheduled meeting: Thursday, August 9, 2018, 4:00 p.m., at the Kern 

County Public Health Services Department, Bakersfield, California. 
 

B. The deadline for submitting public requests on the next EMCAB meeting agenda is 
Thursday, July 26th, 2018, 5:00 p.m., to the Kern County EMS Division Senior Emergency 
Medical Services Coordinator. 

 
XV. Adjournment 

 

Disabled individuals who need special assistance to attend or participate in a meeting of the Kern County 
Emergency Medical Care Advisory Board (EMCAB) may request assistance at the Kern County Public 
Health Services Department located at 1800 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, 93306 or by calling 
(661) 321-3000. Every effort will be made to reasonably accommodate individuals with disabilities by 
making meeting materials available in alternative formats.  Requests for assistance should be made at 
least three (3) working days in advance whenever possible. 



EMERGENCY MEDICAL CARE ADVISORY BOARD 
Membership Roster 

 

Name and Address                                                                        Representing       

Mike Maggard, Supervisor    Board of Supervisors  
Third District 
1115 Truxtun Avenue 
Bakersfield, CA  93301 
(661) 868-3670 
 
Alternate 
Mick Gleason, Supervisor     
First District 
1115 Truxtun Avenue 
Bakersfield, CA  93301 
(661) 868-3651 
____________________________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                                   
Donny Youngblood, Sheriff     Police Chief’s Association 
Kern County Sheriff’s Department 
1350 Norris Road 
Bakersfield, CA  93308 
(661) 391-7500       
   
Alternate        
Vacant 
____________________________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                                    
Brian Marshall, Chief     Fire Chief’s Association 
Kern County Fire Department 
5642 Victor Street 
Bakersfield, CA  93308 
(661) 391-7011 
 
Alternate  
Vacant       
____________________________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                                    
 James Miller       Urban Consumer 
14113 Wellington Court 
Bakersfield, CA 93314 
(817) 832-2263  
 
Alternate       
Vacant 
 
  



Name and Address_____________________________________Representing__________________ 
Vacant       Rural Consumer 
         
 
Alternate  
Vacant 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Randy Miller      City Selection Committee 
Mayor, City of Taft 
209 E. Kern Street 
Taft, CA 93268 
 
Alternate        
Cathy Prout        
Mayor, City of Shafter 
435 Maple Street 
Shafter, CA  93263 
(661) 746-6409 
____________________________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                                    
Paul Paris       Kern Mayors and City Managers Group 
City of Wasco 
746 8th Street 
Wasco, CA 93280 
(661) 758-7214 
 
Alternate 
Vacant     
____________________________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                                    
Vacant       Kern County Medical Society 
 
 
Alternate 
Vacant 
____________________________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                                    
Bruce Peters, Chief Executive Officer   Kern County Hospital Administrators 
Mercy and Mercy Southwest Hospitals 
2215 Truxtun Avenue  
P.O. Box 119 
Bakersfield, CA 93302 
(661) 632-5000 
 
Alternate 
Jared Leavitt, Chief Operating Officer 
Kern Medical Center 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 
Bakersfield, CA 93306 
(661) 326-2000 
 
  



Name and Address_____________________________________Representing__________________ 
John Surface       Kern County Ambulance Association 
Hall Ambulance Inc. 
1001 21st Street 
Bakersfield, CA  93301 
(661) 322-8741 
 
Alternate 
Aaron Moses 
Delano Ambulance Service 
P.O. Box 280 
Delano, CA 93216 
(661) 725-3499 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Kristopher Lyon, M.D.     EMS Medical Director 
1800 Mount Vernon Avenue, 2rd floor 
Bakersfield, CA  93306 
(661) 321-3000 
 
 
Support Staff 
 
Jeff Fariss, Senior EMS Coordinator   EMS Division  
1800 Mount Vernon Avenue, 2nd floor 
Bakersfield, CA  93306 
(661) 321-3000 
 
Karen Barnes, Chief Deputy    County Counsel 
1115 Truxtun Avenue, 4th Floor 
Bakersfield, CA  93301 
(661) 868-3800 
 
Amanda Ruiz      County Administrative Office 
1115 Truxtun Avenue, 5th Floor 
Bakersfield, CA 93301 
(661) 868-3164 
 
 
 



V. Approval of Minutes 
February 8, 2018 



MINUTES  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL CARE ADVISORY BOARD (EMCAB)  

REGULAR MEETING 

THURSDAY – February 8, 2018 

4:00 P.M. 

 

Location: Kern County Public Health Services Department 

San Joaquin Room – 1st Floor 

1800 Mount Vernon Avenue - Bakersfield, California 93306 
(661) 321-3000 

 
I. Call to Order 

 

II. Flag Salute  

 LED BY:  Marshall 

 

III. Roll Call:  Maggard, Youngblood, Marshall, Barlow, Peters, Moses, Lyon 
 

IV. Consent Agenda (CA): Consideration of the consent agenda.   

All items listed with a “CA” are considered by Division staff to be routine and non-controversial. 
Consent items may be considered first and approved in one motion if no member of the Board or 
audience wishes to comment or discuss an item.  If comment or discussion is desired, the item will 
be removed from consent and heard in its listed sequence with an opportunity for any member of 
the public to address the Board concerning the item before action is taken.   

 

V. (CA) Approval of Minutes:  EMCAB Meeting May 11, 2017 – approve 
Marshall-Youngblood:  All ayes 

 
VI. Subcommittee Reports:  None 

  
VII. Public Comments: 

 
This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on any matter not 
on this Agenda and over which the Board has jurisdiction.  Members of the public will also have 
the opportunity to comment as agenda items are discussed. 
NO ONE HEARD 

 
VIII. Public Requests:  None 

 
IX. Unfinished Business:  None 

 

X. New Business: 

 
A. Ambulance Response Time Non-Compliance – receive and file 

Youngblood-Marshall:  All ayes 



 
B. Local Accreditation Policy – receive and file 

Peters-Lyon:  All ayes 

 
C. Optional Scope of Practice – receive and file 

Lyon-Youngblood:  All ayes 

 
XI. Director’s Report: Hear presentation – receive and file 
 Peters-Lyon:  All ayes 

 

XII. Miscellaneous Documents for Information:  

 
A. (CA)    EMS Fund Report – receive and file 
Marshall-Lyon:  All ayes 

 

XIII. Board Member Announcements or Reports:   
 

On their own initiative, Board members may make a brief announcement or a brief report on their 
own activities.  They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff, or take action to 
have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda.  (Government Code Section 54954.2 [a.]) 
 
Marshall informed the Board that the Kern County Fire Department has gone live with their 
EPCR software. 
 
Barlow wanted to commend the Division on the ambulance response time non-compliance 
reporting. 
 

XIV. Announcements: 

 
A. Next regularly scheduled meeting: Thursday, May 10, 2018, 4:00 p.m., at the Kern County 

Public Health Services Department, Bakersfield, California. 
 

B. The deadline for submitting public requests on the next EMCAB meeting agenda is 
Thursday, April 26, 2018, 5:00 p.m., to the Kern County EMS Division Senior Emergency 
Medical Services Coordinator. 

 
XV. Adjournment 

 Peters 

 

Disabled individuals who need special assistance to attend or participate in a meeting of the Kern County 
Emergency Medical Care Advisory Board (EMCAB) may request assistance at the Kern County Public 
Health Services Department located at 1800 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, 93306 or by calling 
(661) 321-3000. Every effort will be made to reasonably accommodate individuals with disabilities by 
making meeting materials available in alternative formats.  Requests for assistance should be made at 
least three (3) working days in advance whenever possible. 



X. New Business 
A. Resuscitation Academy Report



 

 
EMS Division Staff Report for EMCAB-May 10th, 2018 

Kern County Resuscitation Academy 

Background 

The EMS Division monitors and oversees all facets of prehospital emergency medical care in Kern County 

as delivered by our contracted ambulance providers and through our partnerships with area hospitals, 

under the direction of the Medical Director. This care can include victims of trauma, myocardial 

infarction, stroke and sudden cardiac arrest in both the adult and pediatric population of Kern County.  

The Dilemma 

In the U.S. 350,000 people a year die of sudden cardiac arrest, 4 out of 5 of these deaths occur in the 

home. Using the standard model of cardiac care in the prehospital setting only 10-20% of these patients 

survive to discharge from the hospital with an intact quality of life.  

It is the duty of the EMS Division to identify areas for improvement and implement changes to the 

system that have a proven track record.  

The EMS Division Plan of Action 

King County Medic One and Seattle Fire Department have developed, over many years a modified 

system of treating sudden cardiac arrest patients that includes many facets. These include high 

performance CPR, tele-communicator CPR, bystander CPR with the use of the pulse point program and 

public access AED. This system accounts for a 50-60% survival rate of witnessed cardiac arrest victims.  

In October of 2016 the EMS Medical Director and myself travelled to Seattle to take part in the 

Resuscitation Academy that is administered by Seattle Fire and King County Medic One. In April of 2017 

The EMS Division hosted a Resuscitation Academy at Kern County Public Health Services Department. 

We have begun implementing many of the components of the high performance system here in Kern 

County and we look forward to improved cardiac arrest survival rates.  

Therefore it is RECOMMENDED, the Board receive and file the Staff Report. 

 

 



X. New Business 
B. Napa Fire Report 



                                                      

 
 

EMS Division Staff Report for EMCAB-May 10th, 2018 

Northern California Wildfires Response 

Background  

On October 8th, 2017 a group of large wildfires, later known as the North Bay Fires, spread throughout 

Northern California.  These fires, which affected Napa, Sonoma, Mendocino, and Solano counties, have 

been recorded as the deadliest wildfires in California history.  The North Bay fires killed a total of 44 

people and hospitalized dozens more.  In total, the fires burned 8,900 structures (largely residential) and 

scorched over 245,000 acres.   

Dilemma 

Due to the immense size of the fires, over 72 shelters were needed to house an estimated 5,800 

evacuees for extended operational periods.  Among the evacuees were approximately 1,100 medical 

patients that ranged from critical ICU patients to elderly skilled nursing facility patients.  The task of 

transporting, tracking, and supporting the shelters for this disaster proved to be overwhelming for the 

local Operational Area and required a significant amount of mutual aid resources from surrounding 

counties. 

On October 11th, 2017 the Kern County EMS Division was contacted by EMSA for Mutual Aid support 

from the Region V RDMHS, (Regional Disaster Medical Health Specialist). The Region V RDMHS 

responded to Sacramento, CA and assisted the Region II RDMHS with various mission tasks. 

Such tasks included coordinating resources for evacuation of the Yountville Veterans Home skilled 

nursing facility, securing volunteer staff for shelters, and creating situational reports for state 

authorities.   

The EMS Division Plan of Action 

The assistance of the Region V RDMHS role was deemed crucial for proper disaster relief efforts and 

public safety.  As such, the California Emergency Medical Services Authority has since amended the 

RDMHS scope of work to include regional mutual aid assistance whenever it is deemed necessary.  The 

Kern County EMS Division will continue to support the RDMHS role and meet all contractual demands. 

Therefore, IT IS RECOMMENDED, the Board receive and file this report. 

 

 

 



X. New Business 
C. Annual ALS Provider Performance 

Reports 



 
 

Annual Performance Reports 

Background 

On September 21, 2006, the Ambulance Ordinance (Chapter 8.12) was enacted.  The 
ordinance established the exclusive operating areas (EOAs) that divide up the County for 
ambulance transport services.  These EOAs were assigned through the execution of 
performance contracts with ambulance providers.  The Ambulance Service Performance 

Standards, which were approved by the Board of Supervisors on December 5, 2006, outline the 
requirements that ambulance services must meet in order to remain in compliance with 
performance contracts.  Additionally, the Kern County Fire Department implemented paramedic 
services in the operational area of Pine Mountain Club (PMC), which were Board of Supervisors 
approved for implementation on March 1, 2009.  The implementation of this advanced life 
support program created Paramedic First Responder Policies and Procedures Kern County Fire 

Department Station 58- Pine Mountain Club policy which also includes performance-based 
standards. On a monthly basis each ambulance provider and the Kern County Fire Department 
is required to submit reports to the Division for the monitoring of performance.  The information 
is compiled and reported to the Board of Supervisors annually.  In 2015, your Board designated 
the May meeting as the annual meeting for review of the EMS System.   

The EMS Division Plan of Action 

The Division has finalized the following Annual Performance Reports: EOA 1 – Hall Ambulance 
Service, Inc; EOAs 2,4,5,8,9 – Hall Ambulance Service, Inc.; EOA 11 – Hall Ambulance Service, 
Inc.; EOA 3 – Delano Ambulance Service; EOA 6 – Liberty Ambulance Service; EOA 7 – Liberty 
Ambulance Service; and OA58 – Kern County Fire Department.  Each provider has been given 
an opportunity to review their respective reports and provide feedback. 

Therefore IT IS RECOMMENDED, the Board receives and files these reports.  

 



 

2017 Annual Performance Report Summary for  
Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. – EOA 1 

 
Operations and Geography 

 
Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. is responsible for providing all ambulance services within 
exclusive operating area (EOA) number 1.  Located at the northwest part of the County, 
EOA 1 encompasses an area from Highway 65 to the east, the San Luis Obispo County 
line to the west, Kimberlina Road to the south, and Kings County line to the north.  
Included within EOA 1 are long stretches of Interstate 5, Highway 99, and the Highway 
46 corridor as well as the communities of Wasco and Lost Hills. 
 
Hall Ambulance Service Inc.’s base of operations in 2017 was located at 1001 21st Street 
in Bakersfield with a station located at 2324 7th Street in Wasco.  Hall Ambulance 
Service, Inc. operated a fleet of 127 ambulances and 5 supervisor units, 1 helicopter, and 
employed 359 emergency medical technicians, paramedics, dispatchers, nurses and 
support staff.  The owner/president of Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. is Harvey Hall, and 
John Surface is the Vice President of Corporate Operations.   
 
Sub-contracts 

 
Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. does not have any sub-contract agreements with other 
providers for EOA 1.  
 
Response Compliance 

 
Response time compliance is complex; there are 25 categories of response time 
compliance that must be met each month.  In addition, there are three other categories of 
response compliance we measure to ensure that advanced life support (ALS) units are 
predominately used in the system for pre-hospital emergency calls.  Hall Ambulance 
Service Inc. had multiple months in which one or more response categories were not met 
in 2017.  The response category for priority 1 calls in the Urban response zone was not 
met in the months of June, July, August, September, October, November and December.   
The response category for priority 1 calls in the Suburban response zone was not met in 
the months of June, July, August, October, and November.  The category for priority 3 
and 4 calls in the Suburban response zone was not met in the months of July, August, 
September, October, November and December.  The failure of Hall Ambulance Service 
to meet the mandated compliance standards in each of these response category and zones 
constitutes the following violations: 
 

 County Ordinance 8.12.170.E.7: “Failure to meet the zone response time 
standards for three consecutive months in the same zone, or four months in any 
consecutive twelve month period in the same zone.” 

 Ambulance Service Performance Standards IX.G.2.: “Aggregate monthly 
response time performance will be applied to each priority code and response time 



 
 
2017 Ambulance Service Performance Report 
Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. – EOA 1 
Page 2 
 
 

zone in each EOA.  Any priority code, by zone, resulting in less than the 90 
percent response time performance is not-compliant with the Standards.” 

 Agreement #871-2006, Section 3.1.4: “Failure of provider to meet the zone 
response time standards specified in the performance standards for three 
consecutive months in the same zone, or four months in any consecutive 12 
month period in the same zone.” 
 

Notice of Non-Compliance letters were sent to Hall Ambulance Service Inc. on 
September 14, October 4, November 9, January 2, and February 1, 2018 outlining the 
response time violations in EOA 1.  Each letter of Non-Compliance mandated that Hall 
Ambulance Service submit a plan to cure the compliance violations and an updated plan 
on the 1st of every month until the violations ceased.  Copies of the letters of Non-
Compliance and Hall Ambulance Service’ responses are attached.   
 

 Hall Ambulance EOA 1: 2936 responses; 6 turned calls; 86 mutual aid calls 
 
Mutual aid occurs when Hall Ambulance Service provides services to another ambulance 
company outside of the EOA.   Hall Ambulance Service provided 86 separate instances 
of mutual aid to surrounding operating areas, all of which included Delano, McFarland, 
and Woody.  In some of these cases Hall Ambulance was responded due to unavailability 
of Delano Ambulances but gave the call back to Delano Ambulance because a unit 
became available.  
 
A turned call occurs when Hall Ambulance Service fails to respond to a call within its 
EOA and another agency must respond from outside of the area.  During 2017, Hall 
Ambulance Service reported 6 turned calls in EOA 1.  All of these calls were serviced by 
Delano Ambulance Service.  In three cases, Hall Ambulance turned the call to Delano 
Ambulance Service by mistake 
 
Data Reporting 

 
The EMS Division relies on each ambulance company to submit compliance data to 
allow monitoring of performance.  Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. has submitted 
compliance data on time for each month.    
 

Complaints/Investigations 

 
In 2017, there were no formal complaints filed with the EMS Division against Hall 
Ambulance Service, Inc. for services provided within EOA 1.  
 
 
 
  
     



 
 
2017 Ambulance Service Performance Report 
Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. – EOA 1 
Page 3 
 
 
Community Services 

 
In 2017, Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. participated in nine (9) community events.  The 
company provided four (4) ambulance demonstrations, participated in two (2) parades, 
provided ambulance standby service for two (2) fireworks shows, and participated in a 
Safe Kids event. 
 
Dispatch 

 
Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. operates a dispatch center located at the Bakersfield 
address.  This dispatch center provides emergency medical dispatch capabilities for Hall 
Ambulance Service, Inc. The County requires each dispatch center to have “EMD” 
capabilities.  “EMD” indicates that the dispatchers are specially trained and programs are 
in place to medically prioritize each call and provide instructions to callers over the 
phone to provide emergency medical care to the patient.  The quality of “EMD” service is 
closely monitored.  Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. processed over 11,393 calls for 
emergency requests in the dispatch center for 2017, and maintained accreditation with the 
International Academies of Emergency Dispatch (IAED) as an Accredited Center of 
Excellence. The IAED standards in which calls are evaluated for compliance to protocol 
is to be in one of five categories ranging from “high compliance” to “non-compliant.”  In 
2017, Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. maintained 96.4 percent of evaluated calls in the 
“high compliance” and “compliance” categories.  This is a high level of quality and well 
beyond the IAED standard of 73 percent. 
 
Summary 

 
Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. met most of the requirements of the ambulance ordinance, 
ambulance service performance standards, ambulance service agreement, emergency 
medical dispatch standards, and all other policies, procedures, and standards with the 
exception of the above mentioned issues.  There are three documented areas of non-
compliance for 2017.  As described above, the County Ordinance 8.12.170.E.7: Failure to 
meet response zone time standards, Ambulance Service Performance Standards IX.G.2: 
Aggregate monthly response time performance, and a violation of Agreement #871-2006, 
Section 3.1.4: Failure of provider to meet the zone response time standards, plagued Hall 
Ambulance Service Inc, in 2017.  Hall Ambulance Service Inc. staff responded to the 
letters of non-compliance and have been working diligently to correct the issues.    



2017 Annual Performance Report Summary for  
Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. – EOAs 2, 4, 5, 8, and 9 

 
Operations and Geography 

 
Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. is responsible for all responses within five exclusive operating 
areas (EOA) that are covered under one agreement.  Hall Ambulance Service, Inc.’s base of 
operations is located at 1001 21st Street, Bakersfield.  Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. operates a 
fleet that includes 127 ambulances and seven Supervisor units, and employs 359 emergency 
medical technicians, paramedics, nurses, dispatchers, and support personnel. The 
owner/president of Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. is Harvey Hall, and John Surface is the Vice 
President of Corporate Operations. 
 
Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. uses a combination of two operational methods to deploy 
ambulance resources.  In EOAs 2, 8, and 9 the deployment method is mostly static.  That is, 
there is a traditional base of operation from which the ambulances respond.  The other method is 
termed system status management which is used in the Bakersfield Metro Area (EOA 4 and 5).  
This method keeps the resources fluid and moving at all times to provide the best possible 
response at any given time, based on the number of available ambulances and historical system 
demands.  Consequently, traditional stations are not used; ambulances are moved throughout the 
area to position the units for the next anticipated call. 
 
EOA 2 - Located north of Bakersfield, EOA 2 encompasses an area from Highway 33 on the east 
to Quality Road on the west, Merced Avenue to the north and Stockdale Highway to the south.  
Included within EOA 2 are long stretches of Interstate 5 and Highway 99 as well as the 
communities Shafter and Buttonwillow. Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. maintains a station located 
on Lerdo Highway in Shafter where they station two ambulances with twelve employees to cover 
the area.    
 
EOA 4 - Located in and around the greater Bakersfield area, EOA 4 encompasses an area from 
Woody to the north, Panama Road to the south, Interstate 5 to the west and Weedpatch Highway 
to the east.  System status management is used in this EOA.   
 
EOA 5 - Located to the north east of the Bakersfield area, EOA 5 encompasses an area from the 
township of Glennville to the north, Brundage lane to the south, Highway 99 to the west and 
Breckenridge road to the east.  System status management is used in this EOA.   
 
EOA 8 - Located at the south end of the County, EOA 8 encompasses an area from Sand Canyon 
on the east to the Interstate 5 to the west and Los Angeles County line from the south to 
Highway 58 to the north.  Included within the area are the communities of Pine Mountain Club, 
Frazier Park, Lebec, Mettler, Lamont, Arvin, Stallion Springs, Golden Hills, Tehachapi and Sand 
Canyon. Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. maintains a station in Frazier Park, Arvin, Lamont, 
Golden Hills, and two stations in Tehachapi to serve EOA 8. 
 



2017 Ambulance Service Performance Report 
Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. – EOAs 2, 4, 5, 8, 9 
Page 2 
 

2 
 

EOA 9 - Located at the west end of Kern County, EOA 9 encompasses an area from Interstate 5 
on the east to the San Luis Obispo County line to the west and Laval Road from the south to 
Lerdo Hwy to the north.  Included within the area are the communities of Maricopa, Taft, 
McKittrick, Fellows, Valley Acres and Dustin Acres. Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. maintains a 
station in Taft to serve EOA 9, with two ambulances and twelve employees. 
 

Sub-contracts 

 
During 2017, Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. had an agreement Delano Ambulance Service, 
allowing them to provide service within one or more of Hall Ambulance Service, Inc.’s assigned 
areas.  The agreement with Delano Ambulance Service included performance of specific 
transports for inmates originating in Bakersfield and returning to North Kern and Kern Valley 
State Prisons. 
 
Response Compliance 

 
Response time compliance is complex.  There are 25 categories of response time compliance that 
must be met for each EOA per month.  In addition, there are three other categories of response 
compliance we measure to ensure that advanced life support (ALS) units are predominately used 
in the system for pre-hospital emergency calls.  Hall Ambulance Service Inc. had multiple 
months in which one or more response categories were not met in EOA’s 4, 5, and 8 in 2017.  
Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. met the response standards for every category for every month in 
EOA 2 and 9 in 2017.  The failure of Hall Ambulance Service Inc. to meet the mandated 
compliance standards in each of these response categories and zones constitutes the following 
violations: 
 

 County Ordinance 8.12.170.E.7: “Failure to meet the zone response time standards for 
three consecutive months in the same zone, or four months in any consecutive twelve 
month period in the same zone.” 

 Ambulance Service Performance Standards IX.G.2.: “Aggregate monthly response time 
performance will be applied to each priority code and response time zone in each EOA.  
Any priority code, by zone, resulting in less than the 90 percent response time 
performance is not-compliant with the Standards.” 

 Agreements #873-2006, #876-2006 and #871-2006, Section 3.1.4: “Failure of provider to 
meet the zone response time standards specified in the performance standards for three 
consecutive months in the same zone, or four months in any consecutive 12 month period 
in the same zone.” 
 

Notice of Non-Compliance letters were sent to Hall Ambulance Service Inc., on September 14, 
October 4, November 9, January 2, and February 1, 2018 outlining the response time violations 
in each of the EOA’s.  Each letter of Non-Compliance mandated that Hall Ambulance Service 
submit a plan to cure the compliance violations and an updated plan on the 1st of every month 
until the violations ceased.  Copies of the letters of Non-Compliance and Hall Ambulance 
Service’ responses are attached.   
 



2017 Ambulance Service Performance Report 
Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. – EOAs 2, 4, 5, 8, 9 
Page 3 
 

3 
 

 
 EOA 2: 2,468 responses; all response compliance standards were met; 0 turned calls; 0 

mutual aid calls 
 

 EOA 4: 49,893 responses; response compliance standards were not met for priority 1, 
metro in the months of April, August, September, October, and November.  Additionally, 
Hall Ambulance Service Inc, was out of response time compliance for priority 2, metro in 
October of 2017.  They had 0 turned calls and responded to 1 mutual aid call.   

 
 EOA 5:  29,455 responses; response compliance standards were not met for priority 2, 

Urban, in the months of February, March, April, May, June, July, August, September, 
October, November, and December.  Additionally, Hall Ambulance Service Inc. failed to 
meet compliance standards in priorities 6, 7 and 8, in the metro response zone in the 
months of October and November.  They had 0 turned call; 0 mutual aid calls 

 
 EOA 8:  8,833 responses; response compliance standards were not met for priority 1, 

Urban, in the month of October and priority 2, Urban, in the month of November. They 
had 40 turned calls and responded to 41 mutual aid calls 

 
 EOA 9:  2,799 responses; response compliance standards were not met for priority 3 and 

4, metro zone in the month of January.  They had 0 turned calls and responded to 4 
mutual aid calls 

 
Mutual aid occurs when Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. provides services to another ambulance 
company outside of the EOA.   Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. provided 46 separate instances of 
mutual aid to surrounding areas.  The demand for services in other areas exceeded the capability 
of the existing ambulance service providers and Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. provided 
resources to meet the demand.   
 
A turned call occurs when the contracted agency fails to respond to a call within its EOA and 
another agency must respond from outside of the area.  During 2017, Hall Ambulance Service, 
Inc. reported no turned calls in EOAs 2, 4, 5 and 9.   
 
In EOA 8, there were 40 turned calls and these occurred in the Frazier Park area. With this many 
turned calls, it typically would indicate that the provider may not be supplying sufficient 
resources to cover the demand.  But, the situation in this area is unique.  American Medical 
Response (AMR) provides ambulance service in the adjacent Los Angeles and Ventura counties, 
with a unit stationed near the Frazier Park area.  With no hospital in the Frazier Park area, 
turnaround times for returning to service can be lengthy and additional back-up units from Hall 
Ambulance Service, Inc. will come from a distance, with the next closest station being Arvin.  
Making frequent use of the AMR unit is smart use of available resources.  It provides rapid 
service to the public; it is better to use a mutual aid resource that is nearby than force the public 
to wait for a Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. response from Arvin or further.  AMR takes 
advantage of the resources that Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. has nearby as well.  Hall 



2017 Ambulance Service Performance Report 
Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. – EOAs 2, 4, 5, 8, 9 
Page 4 
 

4 
 

Ambulance Service, Inc. provided 36 mutual aid responses into Los Angeles and Ventura 
Counties when the AMR ambulance was unavailable. 
 
Data Reporting 

 
The EMS Division relies on each ambulance company to submit compliance data to allow 
monitoring of performance.  Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. was in compliance with all data 
reporting requirements for 2017 in EOA 2, 4, 5, 8 and 9. 
 
Complaints/Investigations 

 
There was one formal complaint made against Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. for EOA 2, 4, 5, 8, 
or 9 in 2017 to prompt the EMS Division to conduct an investigation.   The complaint alleged 
that a wallet was missing following a patient transport. The investigation garnered a witness that 
saw a family member take the wallet. The case is closed.   
   
Community Services 

 
In 2017, Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. participated in many community service events as well as 
public education programs.  It is estimated that Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. interacted with 
approximately 25,000 members of the community in 2017 through their outreach efforts.  The 
following is a summary of the types of community service events Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. 
participated in during the year: 
 

 Blood pressure clinics 
 Health fairs 
 First Aid or ambulance demonstrations for community events or walks 
 Ambulance demonstrations for local schools 
 Safety lectures  
 Career day lectures  
 CPR or AED classes performed for the community 
 CPR or AED classes performed for local high schools 
 Tours of Post 1 for various community and school groups 
 Community service events for highway cleanup efforts 
 Community parades 

 

Dispatch 

 
Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. operates a dispatch center located at the Bakersfield address.  This 
dispatch center provides emergency medical dispatch capabilities for Hall Ambulance Service, 
Inc. The County requires each dispatch center to have “EMD” capabilities.  “EMD” indicates 
that the dispatchers are specially trained and programs are in place to medically prioritize each 
call and provide instructions to callers over the phone to provide emergency medical care to the 
patient.  The quality of “EMD” service is closely monitored.  Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. 



2017 Ambulance Service Performance Report 
Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. – EOAs 2, 4, 5, 8, 9 
Page 5 
 

5 
 

processed over 11,393 calls for emergency requests in the dispatch center for 2017, and 
maintained accreditation with the International Academies of Emergency Dispatch (IAED) as an 
Accredited Center of Excellence. The IAED standards in which calls are evaluated for 
compliance to protocol is to be in one of five categories ranging from “high compliance” to 
“non-compliant.”  In 2017, Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. maintained 96.4 percent of evaluated 
calls in the “high compliance” and “compliance” categories.  This is a high level of quality and 
well beyond the IAED standard of 73 percent. 
 

Summary 

 
2017 proved to be a difficult year for Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. They struggled with response 
times and failed to meet all of the requirements of the ambulance ordinance, ambulance service 
agreement, and ambulance service performance standards for EOAs 4, 5, 8, and 9.  Hall 
Ambulance staff have been working with the Division to regain compliance in their EOA’s.  



2017 Annual Performance Report Summary for  
Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. – EOA 11 

 
Operations and Geography 

 
Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. is responsible for providing all ambulance service within 
exclusive operating area (EOA) number 11.  Located at the southeast end of the County, 
EOA 11 encompasses an area from the San Bernardino County line on the east to Sand 
Canyon to the west and the Los Angeles County line from the south to Red Rock Canyon 
to the north.  Included within EOA 11 are the communities of Rosamond, Willow 
Springs, Mojave, California City, North Edwards, and Boron.   
 
Hall Ambulance Service, Inc.’s base of operations is located at 1001 21st Street, 
Bakersfield; however, satellite stations are located in Mojave, California City, Boron and 
Rosamond. .  Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. operated a fleet of 127 ambulances and seven 
supervisor units and employed 359 emergency medical technicians, paramedics, 
dispatchers, nurses and support staff.  The owner/president of Hall Ambulance Service, 
Inc. is Harvey Hall, and John Surface is the Vice President of Corporate Operations. 
 
Response Compliance 

 
Response time compliance is complex.  There are 25 categories of response time 
compliance that must be met per month.  In addition, there are three other categories of 
response compliance we measure to ensure that advanced life support (ALS) units are 
predominately used in the system for pre-hospital emergency calls.  Hall Ambulance 
Service, Inc. met the response standards for every category for every month. 
 

 EOA 11: 6,416 responses; all response compliance standards were met; 0 turned 

calls; 54 mutual aid calls 
 
Mutual aid occurs when Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. provides services to another 
ambulance company outside of the EOA.   Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. provided 48 
separate instances of mutual aid to surrounding operating areas.  The demand for services 
in other areas exceeded the capability of the other existing ambulance providers and Hall 
Ambulance Service, Inc. provided resources to meet the demand.  All of these calls 
occurred in San Bernardino County. 
 
A turned call occurs when the contracted agency fails to respond to a call within its EOA 
and another agency must respond from outside of the area. During 2017, Hall Ambulance 
Service, Inc. reported no turned calls.  This is an indication that Hall Ambulance Service, 
Inc. is providing the necessary resources to meet the demands of this EOA.   
 



2017 Ambulance Service Performance Report 
Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. – EOA 11 
Page 2 
 
Data Reporting 

 
The EMS Division relies on each ambulance company to submit compliance data to 
allow monitoring of performance.  Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. was in compliance with 
all data reporting requirements for 2017. 
 
Complaints/Investigations 

 
In 2017, there were no formal complaints filed with the EMS Division against Hall 
Ambulance Service, Inc. for services provided within EOA 11.  
 

Community Services 

 
In 2017, Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. participated in numerous community events.  The 
company provided eight blood pressure clinics and 17 ambulance demos in all 
communities serviced.  In addition Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. provided first aid and 
football standbys, and participated in National Night Out and two parades. 
 
Dispatch 

 
Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. operates a dispatch center located at the Bakersfield 
address.  This dispatch center provides emergency medical dispatch capabilities for Hall 
Ambulance Service, Inc. The County requires each dispatch center to have “EMD” 
capabilities.  “EMD” indicates that the dispatchers are specially trained and programs are 
in place to medically prioritize each call and provide instructions to callers over the 
phone to provide emergency medical care to the patient.  The quality of “EMD” service is 
closely monitored.  Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. processed over 11,393 calls for 
emergency requests in the dispatch center for 2017, and maintained accreditation with the 
International Academies of Emergency Dispatch (IAED) as an Accredited Center of 
Excellence. The IAED standards in which calls are evaluated for compliance to protocol 
is to be in one of five categories ranging from “high compliance” to “non-compliant.”  In 
2017, Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. maintained 96.4 percent of evaluated calls in the 
“high compliance” and “compliance” categories.  This is a high level of quality and well 
beyond the IAED standard of 73 percent. 
 
Summary 

 
Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. met all of the requirements of the ambulance service 
performance standards, ambulance ordinance, ambulance service agreement, emergency 
medical dispatch standards, and all other policies, procedures, and standards for EOA 11.   
 























































2017 Annual Performance Report Summary for  
Delano Ambulance Service – EOA 3 

 
Operations and Geography 
 
Delano Ambulance Service is responsible for all ambulance services within exclusive 
operating area (EOA) number 3.  Located at the north end of the County, EOA 3 
encompasses an area from the Tulare County line to the north, Woody to the east, Lost 
Hills Road to the west and Whistler Road to the south.  Included within EOA 3 are 10-
mile stretches of the Highway 99 and Highway 65, as well as the communities of Delano 
and McFarland.   
 
Delano Ambulance Service’s base of operations in 2017 is located at 403 Main Street, 
Delano. Delano Ambulance Service runs a fleet including 5 ambulances and employs 17 
emergency medical technicians, and paramedics.  The owner of Delano Ambulance is 
Aaron Moses.  
 
Sub-contracts 
 
During 2017, Delano Ambulance Service had an agreement with Hall Ambulance 
Service, Inc. to allow for the transport of inmates originating from Bakersfield hospitals 
and return them to North Kern and Kern Valley State Prisons.  Additionally, Tulare 
County will regularly request Delano Ambulance Service to respond into Richgrove, 
Earlimart, or other parts of southern Tulare County for medical calls and other 
emergencies.  However; these calls are on a mutual aid basis, and a formal contract that 
requires Delano Ambulance Service to cover parts of Tulare County has not been 
executed. 
 
Response Compliance 
 
Response time compliance is complex; there are 25 categories of response time 
compliance that must be met each month.  In addition, there are three other categories of 
response compliance we measure to ensure that advanced life support (ALS) units are 
predominately used in the system for pre-hospital emergency calls.  Delano Ambulance 
Service met the response standards for every category for every month in 2017. 
 

 EOA 3:  5038 responses; all response compliance standards were met; 52 turned 

calls; 149 mutual aid calls. 
 
Mutual aid occurs when Delano Ambulance Service provides services for another 
ambulance company outside of the EOA.   Delano Ambulance provided 77 mutual aid 
responses to Tulare County.  The demand for services in other areas exceeded the 
capability of the other existing ambulance providers and Delano Ambulance Service 
provided resources to meet the demand.  Further, Delano Ambulance Service provided 
mutual aid in Bakersfield, Porterville, Woody, Pond, and Wasco.   
 
A turned call occurs when Delano Ambulance Service fails to respond to a call within its 
EOA and another agency must respond from outside of the area.  During 2017, Delano 



2017 Ambulance Service Performance Report 
Delano Ambulance Service – EOA 3 
Page 2 

 
Ambulance Service reported 52 turned calls.  Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. responded to 
all of the requests.  Of the turned calls that were reported, Delano Ambulance Service 
was able to take a number of the calls back completing the calls.   
 
Data Reporting 
 
The EMS Division relies on each ambulance company to submit compliance data to 
allow monitoring of performance.  Delano Ambulance Service was compliant for all 
months with data reporting requirements for its ambulance response compliance reporting 
in 2017.        
 
Complaints/Investigations 
 
In 2017, there were no formal complaints filed with the Division against Delano 
Ambulance Service.  
 
Community Services 
 
Delano Ambulance Service reports participation in ten community service events for 
2017.  These events include ambulance demonstrations for children and participation in 
National Night Out with Delano Police Department.  In 2017, Delano Ambulance Service 
interacted with approximately 10,000 people.  
 
Dispatch 
 
Delano Ambulance Service contracts with Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. to provide EMD 
and dispatch services.  
 
Summary  
 
Delano Ambulance Service met all of the requirements of the ambulance ordinance, 
ambulance service performance standards, and ambulance service agreement.   
 
 
 



2017 Annual Performance Report Summary for  
Liberty Ambulance Service – EOA 6 

 
Operations and Geography 

 
Progressive Ambulance, Inc., doing business as Liberty Ambulance Service, is 
responsible for all ambulance services within exclusive operating area (EOA) number 6.  
Located in the Sierra Nevada Mountains northeast of Bakersfield, EOA 6 encompasses 
the communities of Kernville, Riverkern, Wofford Heights, Alta Sierra, Lake Isabella, 
Bodfish, Havilah, Mountain Mesa, Onyx, Weldon, and parts of Walker Basin.  
 
Liberty Ambulance Service headquarters is located at 1325 W. Ridgecrest Boulevard, 
Ridgecrest.  They operate satellite ambulance stations at 11345 Kernville Road, 
Kernville, and at 3640 Golden Spur Drive, Lake Isabella. Liberty Ambulance Service 
operates a fleet of 12 ambulances and employs 47 emergency medical technicians and 
paramedics.  The Owner/President is Cheryl Poulin and the chief executive officer is 
Peter Brandon. 
 
Sub-contracts 

 
None. 
 
Response Compliance 

 
Response time compliance is complex; there are 25 categories of response time 
compliance that must be met each month.  In addition, there are three other categories of 
response compliance measured to ensure that advanced life support (ALS) units are 
predominately used in the system for pre-hospital emergency calls.  Liberty Ambulance 
Service had four months in which one or more response categories were not met in 2017.  
The response category for priority 1 calls in a metro response zone was not met in the 
month of January.  The response category for priority 6, 7 and 8 calls in urban zone was 
not met in the month of January, and in the Metro zone in the months of November and 
December.  The compliance issues in the month of January were residual from a data 
issue that Liberty experienced in 2016 and the issues in November and December were 
caused by a reporting error which has been corrected.  
 

 EOA 6:  3,824 responses; all response compliance standards were met; 0 turned 

call; 45 calls outside of the EOA. 
 
Mutual aid occurs when Liberty Ambulance Service provides services to another 
ambulance company outside of the EOA.   Liberty Ambulance Service provided 16 
separate instances of mutual aid to surrounding operating areas; 29 of the mutual aid 
responses were out of Kern County.  Mountain 99, the road north of Riverkern, travels 
along the upper Kern River and into remote parts of the Sequoia National Monument.  
Liberty is the closest ambulance service to cover Mountain 99.  Although this area is in 



2017 Ambulance Service Performance Report 
Liberty Ambulance Service – EOA 6 
Page 2 
 
Tulare County and technically falls within the response area of a volunteer service in 
Camp Nelson, the response times from Camp Nelson exceed one hour. Liberty 
Ambulance Service is also the closest ambulance service for the upper Kern River area. 
Consequently, Liberty Ambulance Service is called frequently to provide emergency 
services to that region. 
 
A turned call occurs when Liberty Ambulance Service fails to respond to a call within its 
EOA and another agency must respond from outside of the area.  Liberty Ambulance 
Service reported no turned calls for 2017.   
 
Data Reporting 

 
The EMS Division relies on each ambulance company to submit compliance data to 
allow monitoring of performance.  Liberty Ambulance Service has submitted compliance 
data on time for each month.    
   
Complaints/Investigations 

 
In 2017, there were no formal complaints filed with the EMS Division against Liberty 
Ambulance Service for EOA 6.     
 
Community Services 

 

Liberty Ambulance Service participated in community events by providing an ambulance 
for stand-by at Whiskey Flats Days, hosted an EMS BBQ, and provided standby 
ambulances for football games.  
 
Dispatch 

 
Liberty Ambulance Service does not operate its own dispatch center.  Rather, dispatch 
service is provided by Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. 
 
Summary 

 
Liberty Ambulance Service only met the requirements of the ambulance ordinance, 
ambulance service performance standards, ambulance service agreement, and all other 
policies, procedures, and standards for two months in 2017.  The Response Compliance 
and Data Reporting sections above outline the areas of non-compliance.  Liberty 
Ambulance Service has corrected the issues outlined in this report.     



 

 

 

2017 Annual Performance Report Summary for  
Liberty Ambulance Service – EOA 7 

 
Operations and Geography 

 
Progressive Ambulance, Inc., doing business as Liberty Ambulance Service, is 
responsible for all ambulance services within exclusive operating area (EOA) number 7.  
Located in the north east region of the County, EOA 7 encompasses an area in the high 
desert that includes the communities of Ridgecrest, Inyokern, and Randsburg and a 30 to 
40 mile stretch of both Highway 14 and Highway 395.  Additionally, there are popular 
off-road motorcycle recreational areas within EOA 7. 
 
Liberty Ambulance Service’s base of operations is located at 1325 W. Ridgecrest 
Boulevard, Ridgecrest.  Liberty Ambulance Service operates a fleet of 10 ambulances 
and employs 46 emergency medical technicians and paramedics.  The Owner/President is 
Cheryl Poulin and the chief executive officer is Peter Brandon.  
 
Sub-contracts 

 
None. 
 
Response Compliance 

 
Response time compliance is complex; there are 25 categories of response time 
compliance that must be met each month.  In addition, there are three other categories of 
response compliance measured to ensure that advanced life support (ALS) units are 
predominately used in the system for pre-hospital emergency calls.  Liberty Ambulance 
Service met the response standards for every category for every month.   
 

 EOA 7:  4,590 responses; most response compliance standards were met, priority 
6,7,8 calls were not met in the metro zone for nine months as described above ; 5 
turned calls; 364 mutual aid calls. 

 
Mutual aid occurs when Liberty Ambulance Service provides services to another 
ambulance company outside of the EOA. Liberty Ambulance Service provided 364 
separate instances of mutual aid to surrounding areas.  All but eight were to areas outside 
of the County.  The towns of Trona and Red Mountain are in San Bernardino County, but 
Liberty Ambulance Service is the closest ambulance resource to these communities.  
Liberty Ambulance Service routinely responds to Inyo County for services along 
Highway 395 and Death Valley National Park.  It is not uncommon for Liberty 
Ambulance Service to also respond into the Kennedy Meadow area of Tulare County.  
There were five instances of mutual aid response to China Lake Naval Air Weapons 
Station.  China Lake operates their own ambulance service; however, when the demand 



2017 Ambulance Service Performance Report 
Liberty Ambulance Service – EOA 7 
Page 2 
 

 

for services exceeds available resources, Liberty Ambulance Service responds onto the 
base.   
 
A turned call occurs when Liberty Ambulance Service fails to respond to a call within its 
EOA and another agency must respond from outside of the area.  Liberty Ambulance 
Service reported five turned calls for 2017.  This indicates that Liberty Ambulance 
Service is providing sufficient resources to adequately serve EOA 7, without reliance 
upon other companies.  The five turned calls that were reported were given to China 
Lake Naval Weapons Station.  Liberty Ambulance Service and China Lake Naval 
Weapons Station have an excellent relationship with one another, and often times train 
with one another. 
 
Data Reporting 

 
The EMS Division relies on each ambulance company to submit compliance data to 
allow monitoring of performance.  Liberty Ambulance Service was compliant with data 
reporting requirements for 2017.   
  
Complaints/Investigations 

 
In 2017, there were one formal complaint filed with the EMS Division against Liberty 
Ambulance Service.   The complaint alleged; 1-Inappropriate solicitation for ambulance 
services, 2-failure to follow the appropriate treatment protocol, 3-failure to follow the 
Ambulance Destination Decision Policies and 4-failure to follow Ambulance Service 
Performance Standards.  After a complete and thorough investigation, is was concluded 
that: Allegations 1 and 2 had no merit, Allegation 3 no violation occurred,  Allegation 4 
was found to have merit.  The evidence indicated that Liberty Ambulance had violated 
the Ambulance Service Performance Standards, Section XI.A. Customer Service 
Performance.    
 
Community Services 

 
Liberty Ambulance Service participated in community service events.  Public education 
events Airshows, Relay for Life, Rodeo, and numerous football standbys are some of the 
events Liberty Ambulance participated in.   
 
The County purchased and outfitted a disaster response trailer with trauma supplies for a 
multi-casualty incident.   If a large incident (bus accident, plane crash, building collapse, 
etc.) were to occur, the trailer contains supplies that would allow many people to be 
treated at the scene.  Liberty Ambulance Service has agreed to deploy this resource to 
anywhere in east Kern, on behalf of the County.  Liberty Ambulance Service maintains 
the trailer and equipment in good working order, without compensation. 
 
 
 



2017 Ambulance Service Performance Report 
Liberty Ambulance Service – EOA 7 
Page 3 
 

 

Dispatch 

 
Liberty Ambulance Service does not operate its own dispatch center.  Rather, dispatch 
service is provided by Hall Ambulance Service, Inc. in Bakersfield. 
     
Summary 

 
Liberty Ambulance Service met all of the requirements of the ambulance ordinance, 
ambulance service performance standards, ambulance service agreement, emergency 
medical dispatch standards, and all other policies, procedures, and standards. 
 



 

 

ANNUAL REPORT ON FIRST-RESPONDER PARAMEDIC PROGRAM  
FOR PINE MOUNTAIN CLUB 

(Fiscal Impact: None) 
 
This is the annual report regarding the Kern County Fire Department’s first-responder paramedic 
program serving Pine Mountain Club. This program was established on February 17, 2009. Below 
is a summary of operations from January 2017 through December 2017. 
 
Response Times 
As with most first-responder paramedic programs, response times can be an effective measure 
of the program. Two time zones with four standards were set as measurements for this program.  
The standards for Zone A are 8 minutes, 59 seconds, ninety percent (90%) of the time per month, 
and 12 minutes, 59 seconds, one hundred percent (100%) of the time per month. The standards 
for Zone B are 15 minutes, 59 seconds, ninety percent (90%) of the time per month, and 20 
minutes, 59 seconds, one hundred percent (100%) of the time per month.  In other words, most 
calls occurring close to the fire station will be responded to in less than nine minutes and in no 
case shall the response be longer than 13 minutes. Calls occurring further away from the fire 
station will be responded to in less than 15 minutes most of the time and in no case shall the 
response be longer than 21 minutes. Responses are measured from call time to scene arrival, 
and the time standards are only applicable for those calls that require a hot response (lights and 
siren) to an EMS-related incident.  
 
From January 2017 through December 2017, the Kern County Fire Department response 
performance compliance was measured on a monthly basis as shown in Figure 1 below.  The 
Kern County Fire Department was in compliance in all four categories during the months of 
February, May, June, September, and October.  The Kern County Fire Department was out of 
compliance for one category in January, December, Time Zone A at 90 percent and March and 
August in Time Zone A 100 percent. Time Zone B was not met in July and November for 100 
percent. The Kern County Fire Department has shown a slight decline in response compliance 
over the last few years.  In 2013 the Fire Department did not have any months of non-compliance.   
 
Figure 1.  

 
 
Program Effectiveness 
From January 2017 to December 2017, the Fire Department had contact with 242 patients.  
 
Overall Assessment of the Program 
The first-responder paramedic program operated by the Kern County Fire Department is in 
compliance with EMS rules and regulations, with the exception of response times.  There have 
been no complaints filed with the EMS Division about the Kern County Fire Department’s 
paramedic program.  In previous years the Fire Department worked diligently at improving 
response time performance in the Pine Mountain Club area.  It is anticipated that the Kern County 
Fire Department will continue efforts to address response time compliance in the coming year. 
 

#

1

2

3

4

5

6

StandardJanuary February March April May June July August September October November December

90% Time Standard

NOT MET MET NOT MET NOT MET MET MET MET MET MET MET MET NOT MET Time Zone A  8:59
MET MET NOT MET NOT MET MET MET Time Zone B  15:59NOT MET MET MET MET NOT MET MET

100% Time Standard

MET MET NOT MET NOT MET MET MET

MET NOT MET MET MET

MET NOT MET MET

MET MET MET NOT MET MET MET NOT MET MET Time Zone B  20:59
Time Zone A  12:59MET MET MET



X. New Business 
D. Annual EMS System Activity 

Report 



 
 

Annual EMS System Report 2017 

 

Title 22, Chapter 12, Article 4, effective January 1, 2006, mandated the Local EMS Authority (LEMSA) 

develop a system wide implementation of a Quality Improvement Program for the delivery of EMS care 

to the public. This includes mechanisms to track quality indicators for personnel, equipment and 

supplies, documentation, clinical care and patient outcome, skills maintenance/competency, 

transportation/facilities, public education and prevention, and risk management.  

Health and Safety Code 1797.276, requires the Division to report the state annually regarding the 

activities of this Board.  Furthermore, it requires the report be submitted to the County Board of 

Supervisors. 

The EMS Division developed an annual report that compiled all the Quality Improvement activities we 

are involved in and ensure they meet all the quality indicators required in Health & Safety Code and Title 

22.  This required the Division to compile numerous data elements from over 100,000 EMS electronic 

patient care records. It also required cooperation with local hospitals to ensure an accurate and 

complete analysis of our system is presented.   

This report accurately summarizes the effectiveness of the Kern County EMS system and the activities of 

EMCAB. The report meets all requirements set forth in Health & Safety Code, Title 22, and follows the 

guidelines established by the Emergency Medical Services Authority (EMSA). The report contains a 

multitude of statistics regarding our EMS system. In addition to including this report in your Board 

member packets a copy will be submitted to EMSA and the Kern County Board of Supervisors.  

Therefore IT IS RECOMMENDED, the Board receive and file the Annual EMS System Report - 2017.  

 

 



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 

2017 System Demographics 

  

EMS PRACTITIONERS 3796 
EMD 
EMT 

MICN 
Paramedic 

PFSA 

58 
2711 
163 
321 
543 

TRAINING PROGRAMS 28 
Paramedic Training Programs 

EMT Training Programs 
Continuing Education Providers 

First Aid 

1 
5 
24 
2 

EMERGENCY RECEIVING HOSPITALS 10 
Base Hospitals 

Trauma Centers 
STEMI Receiving Centers 

Stroke Centers 
Pediatric Receiving Centers 

8 
2 
3 
5 
5 

EMS PROVIDER AGENCIES 13 
Air Ambulance 

ALS Ambulance 
ALS Non-Transport 

ALS Fire Dept 
BLS Non-Transport 

PFSA O.S. 

2 
3 
1 
3 
2 
1 



  

 

Response Mode to Scene 

Q3 and Q4 2017 

Code 2 

3,Downgrade5,117 Code 
529Code 
2,Upgrade 

65 

Code 3 

57,347 

Type of Service Requested = 911 Response 

 Code 2 8.1% 

 Code 2,Upgrade 0.1% 

 Code 3 90.9% 

 Code 3,Downgrade 0.8% 

Total: 100.0% 



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 
 

Patient Demographics for all 9-1-1 Calls: 2017 Quarters 3 and 4 

 

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

Under 5 5-14 15-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65-74 75-84 85+

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
C

al
ls

Age Group

Age Group, 2017 Quarters 3 & 4



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 
 

Patient Demographics for all 9-1-1 Calls: 2017 Quarters 3 and 4  

 

  

50%50%

Patient Gender, 2017 Quarters 3 & 4

Female Male



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 

 

Total EMS calls: 53,456 



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 

EMS Arrival Time to Destination: 2017, Quarters 3 and 4 

 

 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

12 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

AM PM

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

Tr
an

sp
o

rt
s

Time of Day

Number of EMS Transports by Destination Arrival Time, 2017 Quarters 3 and 4



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 

Kern County EMS State Core Measures: 2017 

STEMI 

• ACS-1: Administration of aspirin for chest pain of cardiac origin 

• ACS-2: 12 lead ECG performance 

• ACS-3: Scene time for suspected heart attack patients 

• ACS-5: Direct transport to a STEMI receiving center 

Stroke 

 STR-2: Glucose Testing for Suspected Stroke Patients 

 STR-3: On-Scene Time of Suspected Stroke Patients (90th Percentile) 

 STR-5: Percentage of Suspected Stroke Patients Transported Directly to Stroke Center 

Trauma 

 TRA-1: On-Scene Time (90th Percentile) 

 TRA-2: Direct Transport to a Trauma Center 

Pediatric 

 PED-1: Percentage of Pediatric Asthma Patients Receiving Bronchodilators 

Other 

 RES-2: Beta 2 Agonist Administration to Adults 

 

 

 

 

 



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 

Intraosseous Attempts and Success Rates for Adults and Pediatric Patients, 2017 

 

 

 

100 100 100

80

0

20

40

60

80

100

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Su
cc

es
s 

R
at

e

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
P

at
ie

n
ts

Quarter, 2017

Pediatric Intraosseous Attempts and Success Rate, 2017

Success Rate



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 

Intraosseous Attempts and Success Rates for Adults and Pediatric Patients, 2017 

 

96

78

57

80

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Su
cc

e
ss

 R
at

e

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
P

at
ie

n
ts

Quarter, 2017

Adult Intraosseous Attempts and Success Rate, 2017

Success Rate



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 

STEMI: EMS Data, 2017 

 

 



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 
STEMI: Patient Demographics, 2017 Quarters 3 and 4 

 

 

 

 

 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

35-44 45-54 55-64 65-74 75-85 85+

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
Tr

an
sp

o
rt

s

Age Group

Age Group of STEMI Patients, 2017 Quarters 3 & 4



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 
STEMI: Patient Demographics, 2017 Quarters 3 and 4 

 

 

 

48%52%

Gender of STEMI Patients, 2017 Quarters 3 & 4

Female

Male



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 
STEMI: State Core Measures, 2017 

 

*Please note: Change in database that occurred in Quarter 3 of 2017 allowed for more accurate measurement of denominator (chest pain of 

cardiac origin).  

 

 

 

39.1

82.3

58.3

43.5

82.3 82.4

60.3

88.4 88.8

65.9

82
88.8

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

ACS-1 ACS-2 ACS-5

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

ST
EM

I P
at

ie
n

ts

STEMI Core Measure

STEMI Core Measures, 2017

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 
STEMI: State Core Measures, 2017 

 

 

 

28.2

38.4

24.5 25.0

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Ti
m

e
 (

m
in

u
te

s)

Quarter, 2017

ACS-3: On-Scene Time for Trauma Patients (90th Percentile), 2017

State Benchmark



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 

Stroke QI: EMS Data, 2017 

 



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 
Stroke: Patient Demographics, 2017 Quarters 3 and 4 

 

 

 

 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
at

ie
n

ts
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
e

d

Age Group

Age Group of Susected Stroke Patients, 2017 Quarters 3 & 4



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 
Stroke: Patient Demographics, 2017 Quarters 3 and 4 

 

 

 

 

46%
54%

Gender of Suspected Stroke Patients, 
2017 Quarters 3 & 4

Female

Male



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 
Stroke: State Core Measures, 2017 

 

79.0 80.0 81.0
84.0

90.0
85.0

74.0
80.0 80.3

84.4

71.0
77.0

0.00

20.00

40.00

60.00

80.00

100.00

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2015 2016 2017

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

P
at

ie
n

ts
 T

es
te

d
 (

%
)

Year and Quarter

STR-2: Glucose Testing for Suspected Stroke Patients, 2015-2017

State benchmark



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 
Stroke: State Core Measures, 2017 

 

 

22.0

23.6

21.8
22.2

21.0
21.4

20.2

20.9

22.8

23.9 24.1

22.3

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2015 2016 2017

Ti
m

e
 (

in
 m

in
u

te
s)

Year/Quarter

STR-3: On-Scene Time (90th Percentile) for Suspected Stroke Patients, 2015-2017 



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 
Stroke: State Core Measures, 2017 

 

81 82

64

81

87

80 80

88
85 85

90

81
79

93 93
91

50

60

70

80

90

100

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2014 2015 2016 2017

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

P
at

ie
n

ts
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
e

d
 (

%
)

Year and Quarter

STR-5: Percent of Suspected Stroke Patients Transported Directly to Stroke Center: 2014-
2017

Benchmark



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 
Hospital Data, Stroke System of Care: 2016-2017 

 

68

32.3 36

79

19
38

35
34

20

64 74
60.5

46

146

83 88

304

256

223

304

382

449
420

402

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2016 2017

Ti
m

e 
(M

in
u

te
s)

Year and Quarter

Compiled Average Times: All Stroke Receiving Centers, 2016-2017

Door to CT Door to IV t-PA LKW to Door



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 
Trauma: State Core Measures, 2017 

 

29.2

20.2

15.2

24.4
26.4

33.1

27.5
29.5

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2016 2017

Ti
m

e 
(m

in
u

te
s)

Year and Quarter

TRA-1: On-Scene Time (90th Percentile), 2016-2017

State Benchmark



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 
Trauma: State Core Measures, 2017 

 

86.7

82.0

88.7 89.0

91.5

85.5

87.0

85.0

75

80

85

90

95

100

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2016 2017

P
er

ce
n

t 
o

f 
Tr

an
sp

o
rt

s 
(%

)

Year and Quarter

TRA-2: Percent of Trauma Patients Directly Transported to Trauma Center, 2016-2017

State Benchmark



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 
RES-2: State Core Measure, 2017 

 

*Please note: change in database after July 1st, 2017 allowed for more accurate measurement of the denominator (adults in acute 

respiratory distress) 

42.9 42.2

36.8

42.1
46.1

39.8

* 49.2

* 56.3

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2016 2017

P
er

ce
n

t 
(%

)

Month and Year

RES-2: Beta 2 Agonist Administration to Adults, 2016-2017



      Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 
 
Pediatrics: State Core Measures, 2017 

 

*Please note: change in database after July 1st, 2017 allowed for more accurate measurement of the denominator (pediatric patients 

with acute respiratory distress) 

37.5 42
34.9 37 38

36.6

* 74.7

* 57.8

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2016 2017

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

P
e

d
s 

P
at

ie
n

ts
 in

 R
e

sp
 D

is
tr

es
s

Year/Quarter

PED-1: Percent of Pediatric Asthma Patients Recieving Bronchodilators, 2016-2017 



 
 

Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 

Total number of pediatric patients in 2017:  2,249 

Pediatric Patient by Age 

 

Pediatric Primary Impression 

80 

120 

160 

200 

240 

280 

320 

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 

30 5 

25 3 

15 8 
12 5 7 11 6 10 9 11 12 9 12 6 1 14 14 1 14 6 

17 4 
20 9 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 

Age 



 
 

Kern County EMS System Update: 2017 

 

 

Pediatric Destination 

ADVENTIST HEALTH BAKERSFIELD 171 
Antelope Valley Hospital Medical Center 21 
ANTELOPE VLLY MED CT 128 
Bakersfield Memorial Hospital- 34th Street 19 
BARSTOW COMM HOSP 4 
BKFLD HEART HOSP 3 
Childrens Hospital Central California 2 
DELANO REG MED CNTR 26 
Delano Regional Medical Center 155 
Kern County Med Center 1 
KERN MEDICAL 315 
Kern Medical Center 11 
Kern Valley Healthcare District 27 
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 1,035 
MERCY HOSPITAL 42 
Mercy Southwest Hospital 1 MERCY SW 
HOSPITAL 141 
Ridgecrest Regional Hospital 69 
SAN JOAQUIN COMM HOSP 57 

San Joaquin Community Hospital 2 
TEHACHAPI HOSPITAL 19 
Total: 2,249 



            Kern County EMS:  
  Quality Improvement Plan, 2017 
 

Response Times (90th Percentile): Kern County Metro

 

 

 

 

0:00:00

0:01:26

0:02:53

0:04:19

0:05:46

0:07:12

0:08:38

0:10:05

0:11:31

0:12:58

June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2017

Ti
m

e 
(h

h
:m

m
:s

s)

Year/Month

EOA-1: Priority 1 Metro Response Times,  June-Dec 2017

Standard

0:00:00

0:01:26

0:02:53

0:04:19

0:05:46

0:07:12

0:08:38

0:10:05

0:11:31

0:12:58

June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2017

Ti
m

e 
(h

h
:m

m
:s

s)

Year/Month

EOA-1: Priority 2 Metro Response Times, June-Dec  2017

Standard



            Kern County EMS:  
  Quality Improvement Plan, 2018 
 

Response Times (90th Percentile): Kern County Metro

 

 

0:08:04

0:08:21

0:08:38

0:08:56

0:09:13

0:09:30

0:09:48

0:10:05

0:10:22

June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2017

Ti
m

e 
(h

h
:m

m
:s

s)

Year/Month

EOA-4: Priority 1 Metro Response Times, June-Dec 2017

Standard

0:09:56

0:10:05

0:10:13

0:10:22

0:10:31

0:10:39

0:10:48

0:10:57

0:11:05

0:11:14

0:11:23

June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2017

Ti
m

e 
(h

h
:m

m
:s

s)

Year/Month

EOA-4: Priority 2 Metro Response Times, June-Dec 2017

Standard



            Kern County EMS:  
  Quality Improvement Plan, 2018 
 

Response Times (90th Percentile): Kern County Metro

 

0:08:12

0:08:21

0:08:30

0:08:38

0:08:47

0:08:56

0:09:04

0:09:13

June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2017

Ti
m

e 
(h

h
:m

m
:s

s)

Year/Month

EOA-5: Priority 1 Metro Response Times, June-Dec 2017

Standard

0:08:21

0:08:38

0:08:56

0:09:13

0:09:30

0:09:48

0:10:05

0:10:22

0:10:39

0:10:57

0:11:14

June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2017

Ti
m

e 
(h

h
:m

m
:s

s)

Year/Month

EOA-5: Priority 2 Metro Response Times, June-Dec 2017

Standard



            Kern County EMS:  
  Quality Improvement Plan, 2018 
 

 

Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT): 90th Percentile, by Hospital 

 

 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

June July August September October November December

A
P

O
T

-1
 (

m
in

u
te

s)
 

Month

APOT-1: Bakersfield Hospitals
June - December 2017

Adventist Health Bakersfield Bakersfield Heart Hospital Bakersfield Memorial Hospital

Kern Medical Mercy Hospital Mercy Southwest Hospital



            Kern County EMS:  
  Quality Improvement Plan, 2018 
 

Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT): 90th Percentile, by Hospital 

 

 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

June July August September October November December

A
P

O
T

-1
(m

in
u

te
s)

Month

APOT-1: Outlying Area Hospitals 
June-December 2017

Delano Regional Medical Center Kern Valley Healthcare District Ridgecrest Regional Tehachapi Hospital



            Kern County EMS:  
  Quality Improvement Plan, 2018 
 

Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT): Time Criteria and Transport Volume, by Hospital 

 

APOT-2 Time Criteria 

 

CATEGORY TIME (MINUTES) 

2.1 <= 20 

2.2 21-60 

2.3 61-120 

2.4 121-180 

2.5 >180 

 

 

 

 



            Kern County EMS:  
  Quality Improvement Plan, 2018 
 

Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT): Time Criteria and Transport Volume, by Hospital 

 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Tr
an

sp
o

rt
 V

o
lu

m
e

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

T
o

ta
l T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
s 

(%
)

Month

Adventist Health APOT-2: June-December 2017

2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 Total Volume



            Kern County EMS:  
  Quality Improvement Plan, 2018 
 

Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT): Time Criteria and Transport Volume, by Hospital 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

90.0

100.0

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Tr
an

sp
o

rt
 V

o
lu

m
e

P
er

ce
n

t 
o

f 
To

ta
l T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
s

(%
)

Month

Bakersfield Heart Hospital APOT-2: June - December 2017

2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 Transport Volume



            Kern County EMS:  
  Quality Improvement Plan, 2018 
 

Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT): Time Criteria and Transport Volume, by Hospital 

 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

90.0

100.0

June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Tr
an

sp
o

rt
V

o
lu

m
e

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

T
o

ta
l T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
s 

(%
)

Month

Bakersfield Memorial Hospital APOT-2: June-December 2017

2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 Transport Volume



            Kern County EMS:  
  Quality Improvement Plan, 2018 
 

Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT): Time Criteria and Transport Volume, by Hospital 

 

 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

90.0

100.0

June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Tr
an

sp
o

rt
 V

o
lu

m
e

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

T
o

ta
l T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
s 

(%
)

Month

Kern Medical APOT-2: June-December 2017

2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 Transport Volume



            Kern County EMS:  
  Quality Improvement Plan, 2018 
 

Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT): Time Criteria and Transport Volume, by Hospital 

 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

90.0

100.0

June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Tr
an

sp
o

rt
 V

o
lu

m
e

P
e

rc
en

t 
o

f 
al

l T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

s 
(%

)

Month

Mercy Hospital APOT-2: June-December 2017

2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 Total Volume



            Kern County EMS:  
  Quality Improvement Plan, 2018 
 

Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT): Time Criteria and Transport Volume, by Hospital 

 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

90.0

100.0

June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Tr
an

sp
o

rt
 V

o
lu

m
e

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

T
o

ta
l T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
s 

(%
)

Month

Mercy Southwest APOT-2: June-December 2017

2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 Total Volume



            Kern County EMS:  
  Quality Improvement Plan, 2018 
 

Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT): Time Criteria and Transport Volume, by Hospital 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

90.0

100.0

June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Tr
an

sp
o

rt
 V

o
lu

m
e

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

T
o

ta
l T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
s 

(%
)

Month

Delano APOT-2: June - December 2017

2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 Transport Volume



            Kern County EMS:  
  Quality Improvement Plan, 2018 
 

Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT): Time Criteria and Transport Volume, by Hospital 

 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

75.0

80.0

85.0

90.0

95.0

100.0

June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Tr
an

sp
o

rt
 V

o
lu

m
e

To
ta

l P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

s 
(%

)

Month

KVHCD APOT-2: June - December 2017

2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 Transport Volume



            Kern County EMS:  
  Quality Improvement Plan, 2018 
 

Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT): Time Criteria and Transport Volume, by Hospital 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

90.0

100.0

June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Tr
an

sp
o

rt
 V

o
lu

m
e

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

T
o

ta
l T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
s 

(%
)

Month

Ridgecrest APOT-2: June-December 2017

2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 Total Volume



            Kern County EMS:  
  Quality Improvement Plan, 2018 
 

Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT): Time Criteria and Transport Volume, by Hospital 

 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

90.0

100.0

June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Tr
an

sp
o

rt
 V

o
lu

m
e

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

T
o

ta
l T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
s 

(%
)

Month

Tehachapi APOT-2: June - December 2017

2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 Total Volume



 
 

Emergency Medical Care Advisory Board Summary 2017 
 

The Emergency Medical Care Advisory Board (EMCAB) was established pursuant to 
section 1797.270 et seq. of the California Health and Safety Code. EMCAB is advisory 
to the Kern County Board of Supervisors. EMCAB is made up of eleven primary 
members and alternates for each position representing various multi-disciplinary 
community organizations and consumers. EMCAB meets quarterly. Details regarding 
the topics below can be found on the Division’s website at 
www.kernpublichealth.com/ems 
 
The following offers a summary of EMCAB actions for the calendar year 2017: 

February 9, 2017  

Issue  Suggested Action EMCAB Action 

Ambulance Destination Decision 
Policies and Procedures 

Approve No action taken due to lack of 
quorum 

Patient Care Record Policies and 
Procedures 

Approve No action taken due to lack of 
quorum 

Burn Center Designation Policy Approve No action taken due to lack of 
quorum 

EMS Fund Report Receive and File No action taken due to lack of 
quorum 

May 11, 2017  

Issue Suggested Action EMCAB Action 

Ambulance Destination Decision 
Policies and Procedures 

Approve Approved 

Patient Care Record Policies and 
Procedures 

Approve Approved 

Burn Center Designation Policy Approve Approved 

Annual ALS Provider 
Performance Reports 

Receive and file Received 

Annual EMS System Activity 
Report 

Receive and file Received 
 

Directors Report Receive and file Received 

EMS Fund Report Receive and file Received 

August 10, 2017 

Issue Suggested Action EMCAB Action 

Meeting canceled 

 

November 9, 2017 

Issue Suggested Action EMCAB Action 

Meeting Canceled 

http://www.kernpublichealth.com/ems







